AGENDA FOR EU’;W

LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL

Contact: Andrew Woods, Democratic Services
Direct Line: 0161 253 5134

E-mail: a.p.woods@bury.gov.uk

Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Licensing and Safety Panel
Councillors : P Adams, N Bayley, I Bevan, J Grimshaw,
R Hodkinson, D Jones (Chair), G Keeley, J Kelly,
O Kersh, A McKay, Sarah Southworth, J Walker and
S Wright

Dear Member

Licensing and Safety Panel

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Thursday, 27 July 2017

Place: Meeting Rooms A and B, Town Hall, Knowsley Street,
Bury, BL9 OSW

Time: 7.00 pm

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
Facilities: | appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the
related report should be contacted.

Briefing

Notes:




10

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Licensing and Safety Panel are asked to consider whether
they have an interest in any of the matters on the agenda, and if so, to
formally declare that interest.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting
on any matters for which this Panel is responsible.

Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time if
required.

MINUTES (Pages 1 -6)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15
June 2017.

OPERATIONAL REPORT (Pages 7 - 8)
REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AGE POLICY (Pages 9 - 54)
URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business, which by reason of special circumstances, the Chair
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider passing the appropriate resolution under section 100 (A)(4) of
the Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded
from the meeting during consideration of the following item of business
since it involves the likely disclosure of the exempt information stated.

SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE
HIRE DRIVER LICENCES (Pages 55 - 66)

APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE /PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER
LICENCE (Pages 67 - 72)



Document Pack Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

Minutes of: LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL
Date of Meeting: 15 June 2017
Present: Councillor D Jones (in the Chair),

Councillors: P Adams, G Keeley, J Walker, N
Bayley, J Grimshaw, O Kersh, A McKay and
Sarah Southworth and S Wright

and S Wright

Apologies for absence: Councillors, R Hodkinson, I Bevan and M
Connolly

Public Attendance: There were 12 members of the public in
attendance

LSP.21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest raised in relation to any items on
the agenda.

LSP.22 MINUTES
Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the Licensing and Safety Panel meeting held on 20
April 2017, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

LSP.23 MATTERS ARISING

In respect of Minute LSP.697, the Licensing Service confirmed that a
letter had been sent on behalf of the Panel, thanking the Street Pastor
Service for the valuable work they undertake.

LSP.24 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Mr Charles Oakes raised a question in relation to a case where a driver
did not receive a fault sheet following his vehicle being tested at the
Bradley Fold testing Centre. Mr Oakes expressed concerns and stated
that drivers were entitled to be provided with a fault sheet. The
Licensing Unit Manager explained the individual circumstances of the
case, which related to a Hackney Carriage, stating that the information
was initially provided directly to the Licensing Department as a
safeguard for the Council and the driver to prevent them undertaking a
large amount of work on a vehicle that would not be relicensed due to
the 5 fault rule that is in place and would have applied to the vehicle in
question. The driver was spoken to by the Licensing Unit Manager on the
day of the test the 13% June 2017. The driver was then provided with
the test sheet along with a letter dated 15% June 2017which informed
him that the application to renew the Hackney Carriage vehicle Licence
was refused.

13



Document Pack Page 2

LSP.25

LSP.26

Mr Haroon Khan then raised further questions about the same case. The
Licensing Unit Manager explained that the Council’s age policy was such
that vehicles over 10 years old are subject to a ‘5 fault rule” and will not
be relicensed if found with that nhumber of faults when tested. In this
case, the large number of faults identified on the vehicle, raised
concerns about the lack of maintenance throughout the trade generally
and the lack of preparation of vehicles in readiness for testing. It was
also noted that there are occasions when vehicles are tested and taken
away for repair, returning with the same faults. The Licensing Unit
Manager referred those present to the guidance on the Council’s website
in relation to the testing of vehicles.

Mr Oakes then asked that an open meeting be arranged between the
Panel Members, Licensing Department and Taxi Trade. The Chair,
Councillor Jones, referred to the ongoing liaison meetings that take place
with representatives of the bodies Mr Oakes had referred to and the fact
one had taken place on Tuesday 13t June 2017, but Mr Oakes had not
attended.

Mr Hussain made a request for an increase in the number of testing
stations in addition to Bradley Fold. Mr Oakes added that without
competition there was no benchmark to which Bradley Fold could be
measured. The Chair referred to the fact this issue had been considered
by Panel Members on a number of occasions and highlighted that the
use of Bradley Fold enabled the Council to maintain the highest
standards and consistency in relation to vehicle testing.

In response to questions relating to the 10 year age policy, the Licensing
Manager explained that a report on the issue of implementing an
‘exceptional condition’ requirement, was before the Panel this evening.

OPERATIONAL REPORT

The Assistant Director (Localities) submitted a report advising Members
on operational issues within the Licensing Service.

The report set out updates in respect of the following issues:

Pre- Application Assessments

Immediate Revocation of Private Hire Driver Licence
Appeal to the Magistrates Court

Staffing - Deputy Licensing Officer

Hackney Carriage Age Policy

Taxi Liaison Meeting

It was agreed:
That the report be noted.

REVIEW OF CURRENT POLICIES RELATING TO THE LICENSING
AND TESTING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGES

The Assistant Director (Localities) submitted a report relating to the
licensing and testing of Hackney Carriages. The matter had previously
been considered by this Panel in May 2014 which had resolved that the

14



Document Pack Page 3

Age Policy would be 10 years from the date of first registration with
“exceptional condition” criteria being re-introduced and that existing
licence holders be allowed a 3 year transition period. The transition
period came to an end on 1 June 2017, but following a request from the
Bury Hackney Drivers Association, implementation had been suspended
pending consideration by the Licensing and Safety Panel. A request for
the policy to be reconsidered and a petition from current drivers was
appended to the report.

It was agreed:
That the implementation of the “exceptional condition” criteria for

Hackney Carriages be deferred until a further report is considered by this
Panel on 27 July 2017.

LSP.27 URGENT BUSINESS

LSP.28

LSP.29
(E)

There was no urgent business reported.
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
Delegated decision:

That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following items of business since it involved the
likely disclosure of information relating to individuals who hold Licences
granted by the Authority or Applicants for Licences provided by the
Authority.

SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE
HIRE DRIVERS’ LICENCE

Licence Holder 15/2017 was invited into the meeting and was
represented by his solicitor Mr Ahmed.

The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed and the Licensing Unit
Manager presented a summarised report submitted by the Assistant
Director (Localities) which was accepted by the Licence Holder and his
representative. This set out the reasons for the Licence Holder being
before the Panel.

The report explained that the Licence Holder has been licensed as a
Private Hire Driver since February 2015 and in March 2017 had been
charged under Section 4A(1) and (5) or the Public Order Act 1986 in
relation to the use of threatening language towards his wife following an
argument as a result of him being refused access to the marital home.

The Licence Holder acknowledged that the argument did take place and

stated that he regretted his actions during a stressful time when he and
his wife were in the process of separating.

15



Document Pack Page 4

LSP.30
(E)

Delegated decision:

After carefully considering the written report, oral statements from the
Licence Holder and his representative, Mr Ahmed, and taking into
account the Council’s Convictions Policy and Guidelines, pursuant to the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the Panel
resolved, unanimously, to take no further action.

The Panel noted that although an extremely serious incident, the
Licence Holder had expressed regret and sorrow over the incident. The
Panel also noted that the original charge had been downgraded to a
lesser public order offence and the mitigating factors presented by the
Licence Holder. The Licence Holder had immediately informed the
Licensing Service of the conviction and he is also the subject of a
restraining order which would have to be adhered to during his working
day.

APPLICATIONS FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE
DRIVERS’ LICENCES

The Licensing Unit Manager presented a report submitted by the
Assistant Director (Localities) regarding applications for Public/Private
Hire Vehicles Drivers’ Licences.

1. Applicant 11/2017 attended the meeting with his wife. The Licensing
Unit Manager read the report which was accepted by the Applicant.

The Applicant and his wife both addressed the Panel and explained that
the conviction possession of criminal property, for which he received a
sentence of 15 months imprisonment, related to the actions of the
Applicants brother-in-law who had used his property for the purpose of
criminal activity. The Applicant stated that he had been unaware of the
actions of his brother-in-law despite his home being used to store a
substantial amount of money. Both the Applicant and his wife stated
that they no longer had contact with the brother-in-law/brother.

Delegated decision:

That after carefully considering the written report, the oral
representations made by the Licence Holder and his wife, the Panel
determined the Applicant not to be a fit and proper person in
accordance with the Local government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 and therefore resolved that the application for a Private Hire
Driver’s Licence by applicant 11/2017 be refused.

The Panel noted the Applicants personal circumstances but found against
the Applicant for the following reasons:

e The offence was of a very serious nature and was equivalent to an
offence of dishonesty.

e The Applicant had been given 15 months imprisonment.

e The Applicant showed no remorse or contrition.

e There was a lack of mitigating facts put forward by the Applicant.

16



Document Pack Page 5

e That being unaware of the criminal activities of a family member
within the Applicant’s property was not a reasonable defence of
such a serious offence.

The Applicant was informed of his right of appeal to the Magistrates
Court within 21 days

2. Applicant 12/2017 attended the meeting and was represented by his
solicitor Mr Ahmed. The Licensing Unit Manager summarised the
report, which was accepted by the Applicant. The report explained
that the Applicant had purchased car insurance through a student
classmate which had been invalidated due to an incorrect date of
birth being provided. The Applicant explained that he had wrongly
trusted his classmate, who worked part time as an insurance broker,
to apply for the insurance on his behalf online. He had been provided
with a certificate of insurance but when he was stopped by the
police, they revealed to him the policy was invalid as the classmate
had provided incorrect details as to the Applicants date of birth. As a
result he was fined £660 and given 6 penalty points.

Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the report, the oral representations by
the Applicant and his solicitor and after taking into account the Council’s
Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and resolved, , that
the application for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence by Applicant
12/2017 be granted.

The Panel noted that the Applicant was remorseful and stated he had
learnt a lesson and that he wanted to work to pay for his studies.
Although the conviction was recent the Panel felt he had been mislead
by a fellow student.

3. Applicant 13/2017 attended the meeting and was unaccompanied.
The Licensing Unit Manager summarised the report, which was
accepted by the Applicant. This explained that the Applicant had had
a previous Private Hire Drivers Licence revoked by another Authority,
as he breached the Authority’s intended use policy by working in
another Authority’s area. The Applicant acknowledged his actions
were wrong and explained that he had breached the conditions of his
previous licence by driving outside of the Borough due to exhaustion
as he was working as a joiner during the day and then as a Private
Hire Driver at night. The Applicant expressed regret and sorrow for
his actions and explained the financial difficulties he was facing, as
he had lost a previous business and had a large amount of debt. He
went on to explain he was trying to provide for his family.

Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the report, the oral representations by

the Applicant and the documents produced to the Panel regarding the

Applicant’s outstanding debt and after taking into account the Council’s
17



Document Pack Page 6

Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 resolved, that the
application for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence by Applicant
13/2017 be granted.

The Panel noted the seriousness of failing to abide by the terms and
conditions associated with a licence, but also noted the Applicants
remorse and difficult financial situation.

4. Applicant 14/2017 attended the meeting and was accompanied by
his employer, the owner of a local taxi firm. The Licensing Unit
Manager summarised the report, which explained that as part of the
application process for a Private Hire Drivers Licence, applicants are
required to undertake and pass a ‘knowledge test’ of the locality. The
Applicant had allegedly been found cheating on tests two and four of
the five licence knowledge tests which he had undertaken. The
Applicant denied cheating on test two but did acknowledge that he
had taken in some revision papers into the exam room during test
four. He explained that he was panicking as a result of failing
previous tests and needed to ensure he could gain a licence as his
current licence in Rossendale was due to expire. He accepted he had
made an error of judgement and had been driving under his
Rossendale licence for 3 years without complaint or issue.

Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the written report, the oral
representations made by the Applicant and his employer and in
accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 and taking into account the relevant policy and the Council’s
Conviction Guidelines, the Panel determined that Applicant 14/2017 was
a fit and proper person and resolved to grant the application for a
Private Hire Drivers Licence for a twelve month period. The
Applicant would not need to appear before the Panel again after this
time if there was no breach of the conviction guidelines or other
complaints against him during that period.

The Panel noted the seriousness of the Applicants action, but also noted
his past history and personal circumstances and accepted that he made
an error of judgement.

COUNCILLOR D JONES
CHAIR
(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and finished at 10.10 pm)

(Note: The Panel voted to suspend Council Procedure Rule 9.6, in

order to allow the meeting to proceed beyond 10pm in order for
the business before the Panel to be concluded).

18



Document Pack Page 7

Agenda Iltem 5

REPORT FOR DECISION

BULKY

Agenda
Item

DECISION OF:

LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL

DATE:

27 JULY 2017

SUBJECT:

OPERATIONAL REPORT

REPORT FROM:

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES)

CONTACT OFFICER:

M BRIDGE

TYPE OF DECISION:

N/A - Report for information only

FREEDOM OF

INFORMATION/STATUS: | This paper is in the public domain

SUMMARY: A report to advise members on operational issues within
the licensing service.

IMPLICATIONS:

Wards Affected:

N/A

Scrutiny Interest:

Internal Scrutiny Panel

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The report advises Members on operational issues within the licensing service.

2.0

2.1

PRE-APPLICATION ASSESSMENTS

Further to the last meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel. The Licensing

Service can confirm that the assessments are continuing to be undertaken by
the adult learning team. From the 26 May 2017 until the 7 July 2017 there has
been 32 assessments carried out. Of the 32 assessments that were booked, 29
passed, 3 failed and O failed to attend.

Contact Details:

M Bridge

Licensing Unit Manager
3 Knowsley Place

Duke Street
Bury

BL9 OEJ

Tel: 0161 253 5209 Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk

1



mailto:m.bridge@bury.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Document Pack Page 9

Agenda Iltem 6

REPORT FOR DECISION

Buny

| Agenda
‘ Item

MEETING: LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL
DATE: 27" JULY 2017
SUBJECT: REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AGE POLICY

REPORT FROM:

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES)

CONTACT OFFICER:

MR M BRIDGE

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:

SUMMARY: Review of Hackney Carriage Age Policy
OPTIONS & To introduce the exceptional condition criteria

RECOMMENDED OPTION

when a Hackney Carriage reaches 10 years of age
from date of first registration.

Continue with the current licensing and testing
policy in relation to Hackney Carriages up to 10
years, then after 10 years require the vehicle to be
subject to the five fault rule.

Continue with the current licensing and testing
policy in relation to Hackney Carriages up to 10
years, then after 10 years require the vehicle to be
subject to the amended exceptional condition
criteria as requested by the Hackney Drivers
Association.

To introduce a 15 year old age policy from date of
first registration for Hackney Carriages as
requested by the Hackney Drivers Association.

To consider alternative amendments determined
by panel to the current policy and

Ensure any such amendments made under option
5 to the exceptional condition criteria to be
applicable to both Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Trades.




Document Pack Page 10

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes ¥ No []

Financial Implications and Risk
Considerations:

There are no specific issues from the report
other than potential costs/risks associated
with legal appeals.

Statement by Director of Finance
and E-Government:

The cost of the licensing function are funded
through the fees and charges levied by the
Council. There may be additional costs if
appeals are lodged with the Magistrates and
Crown Courts.

Equality/Diversity implications:

Yes M No O

Considered by Monitoring Officer:

Yes ¥ Comments

Are there any legal implications?

Under the legislation the Council is required
to determine applications. The report is in
accordance with the appropriate legislation.

Staffing/ICT/Property:

None

Wards Affected:

All

Scrutiny Interest:

Internal Scrutiny Panel

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:
Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Licensing Service has considered the Hackney Carriage Age Policy on 9

different occasions since 2005.

2.0 CURRENT ISSUES

2.1 In May 2014 The Licensing & Safety Panel resolved

1. That the “exceptional condition” criteria be re-introduced for Hackney
Carriages at 10 years and as an incentive to encourage proactive

maintenance and provide

for additional testing requirements where
2




Document Pack Page 11

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

vehicles fall below acceptable standards.

2. That further to (1) above, existing licence holders be allowed a 3 year
transitional period should they have made financial plans in respect of their
vehicle to allow them to be licensed subject to the "5 fault rule”

The transitional arrangements should have come to an end on the  June 2017
as approved by the Licensing and Safety Panel in May 2014,

In March 2017 all hackney carriage vehicle proprietors were notified by letter
that the transitional arrangements agreed, by the Licensing and Safety Panel,
on 8™ May 2014 were due to come to an end. A copy of the letter is attached at
Appendix 1.

The implications for current licensed hackney carriage vehicles, (over the age of
10 years old from date of first registration), is that on the 1% of June they
would cease to be subject to the “five fault rule” and would become subject to
“exceptional condition” criteria.

A copy of the five fault rule is attached at Appendix 2 and a copy of the
exceptional condition criteria is attached at Appendix 3.

On the 9" May 2017, the Licensing Service received a request to review the
current age policy from Mr Giles Bridge (Barrister) of a2z Licensing, This was
submitted on behalf of the Hackney Carriage Drivers Association. A copy of
which is attached at Appendix 4.

In light of this request, the Head of Trading Standards and Licensing in

" consultation with the Chairman of the Licensing and Safety Panel, agreed that

the implementation of the exceptional condition criteria for all hackney
carriages that was due to be implemented on the 1% June 2017, be suspended
until the meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel on the 27 July 2017 where
a further report be presented by the Licensing Service for decision.

On the 13™ June 2017, a liaison meeting was held for the Hackney Carriage
and Private Hire Trades. Invitations were given to Mr Oakes (Chairman of the
Hackney Drivers Association), and 6 Private Hire Operators. Unfortunately the
Hackney Carriage Trade were not represented but apologies were received.

On the 15™ June 2017, Mr Oakes (Chairman of the Hackney Carriage Drivers
Association) and 13 representatives from the hackney and private hire trades
attended the Licensing and Safety Panel. During Public Question time, Mr
Oakes and the representatives of the hackney carriage trade addressed the
Panel Members with questions relating to the Council’s policies in relation to
age of hackney carriages, and an alternative private garage to undertake
vehicle testing. The questions were answered by the Chairman of the Panel and
the Licensing Unit Manager.

On the 15" June 2017 The Licensing Unit Manager presented a report to the
Licensing and Safety Panel, requesting to defer implementation of the
“exceptional condition” criteria for hackney carriages until a further report be
considered by the Licensing and Safety Panel on the 27™ July 2017. This was
approved by Members.



Document Pack Page 12

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

4.1.1

MATTERS RAISED BY HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS ASSOCIATION

The Hackney Carriage Driver Association report that the Hackney Carriage
Trade is experiencing real financial pressures as a consequence of a number of
factors. These are as follows:

e The decline of the Hackney Trade
e Competition from the Private hire trade
e The cost of licensing a new hackney carriage vehicle.

In light of all the issues identified above the Hackney Trade request that the
Council consider the following:-

e All Hackney Carriage vehicles be allowed to remain on the five fault rule
policy
OR
o That the exceptional condition criteria is amended so that it reads as
follows:
b A single re-test of the vehicle will be permitted (other than
replacing faulty lights bulbs)
¢ Interior fascia, Linings, carpets and upholstery to be free from
damage i.e. cuts, blemishes and tears. Aiso to be in a clean tidy
condition.

g Bodywork must be free from corrosion damage. Body and
paintwork to be maintained in good condition. All repairs to the
body and paintwork are to be professionally carried out by VIBRA
member and subject to inspection by the Council’s Vehicle
examiner.

The Drivers further request that the age limit for Hackney Carriage be lifted
from 10 to 15 years which would be in line with the situation in neighbouring
and comparable authorities

The Hackney Trade request action be taken by the Council to ensure that
Hackney Ranks are kept clear to enable hackney vehicles to rank up.

Request Bury Council look to widening the number of garages authorised to test
vehicles.

LICENSING SERVICE RESPONSE TO THE A2Z REPORT
The Policy

The numbers of vehicles affected by the policy change, for 2017 - 20 and 2018
- 11, is not disputed.

As at the 19 June 2017, the breakdown of the age of the existing Hackney
Carriage fleet of 85 vehicles is:

Age of Vehicle Number
0-5 years 7

5-10 years 31
Over 10 years 47




Document Pack Page 13

4.2 Decline of the Hackney Trade

4.2.1 In October 2016 Bury Council re-applied for Purple Flag Accreditation. As part
of this process a survey was carried out in Bury Town Centre.

Bury Town centre night time footfall surveys were carried out in summer 2014
to benchmark footfall data. Total pedestrians by hour of day at eight key
locations were measured across the town centre on a Friday and Saturday
evening.

The footfall surveys were repeated on the corresponding weekends in June
2016.

The Footfall for Friday / Saturday night was recorded as 16559 people and
Saturday/Sunday was 20191 this shows a 5.1% and 1.3% reduction
respectively on 2014.

4.2.2 Difficulty getting onto the ranks

There are currently 12 Hackney Carriage ranks in Bury town centre of which 7
are anytime and 5 are evening/night-time ranks. Some of the Hackney Carriage
ranks are dual purpose: during the day they are available for members of the
public to park and in the evening/night-time they are Hackney Carriage ranks.

The number of spaces that are available for Hackney Carriages on all of the
ranks is 48.

The largest rank frequented by Hackneys is Haymarket (Kay Gardens) and
observations by the Licensing Service reveal most vehicles proceed to this rank
despite other ranks in the town centre being closer to popular venues such as
the Rock. On popular weekdays Wednesdays / Fridays, 5 town centre ranks are
rarely if not used at all by the Hackney Vehicles A table of observation findings
is at Appendix 5.

4.2.3 Private Vehicles parking on the ranks / Private Hire Vehicles parking on
the Ranks
The Licensing Service does not receive complaints from members of the public
regarding private vehicles and private hire vehicles parking on ranks, nor has it
received any complaints from the public re the lack of Hackneys available at
ranks.
The Service has received complaints from the Hackney Drivers Association
relating to both private cars and private hire vehicles parking on ranks within
the Town Centre. 24 complaints were received between the 24™ March and the
3™ June relating to the hours between 11pm - 4 am. A list of the dates and
times is at Appendix 6

4.2.4 The administrative process that has been put in place to deal with such
complaints is as follows:

First Complaint - Record them on respective driver record
Second Complaint - Letter sent to driver to remind him that he/she
should not be parking on ranks

e Third Complaint - consideration is then given to what action should be
taken, this could result in an appearance before the Licensing and Safety

5



Document Pack Page 14

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.4

4.4.1

Panel to consider whether the individual is fit and proper to retain their

badge.
Since October 2016 a total of 48 actions have been taken as follows:

No Action Taken 4

Details Recorded on Drivers | 26

Record

Advice Given 6

Driver Advised & Warned 8

Written Warning Issued 4

The Licensing Service believes that the reason fewer pedestrians make their
way to one particular rank as detailed above, is as a result of changes to the
marketplace including new providers such as Uber competing for business. They
are using modern technology, picking up at the location of the customer, within
minutes and without the need for cash. Private hire companies have also
become more competitive, using apps and facilities such as ringback and text
messages to compete for services.

As detailed Bury Town Centre has 12 ranks however the majority of drivers
continue to wait at Kay Gardens for the business to come to them rather than
wait at other ranks where there may be an increased opportunity for business.

It is not disputed that incomes have reduced.

Private Hire Operators licensed in Bury have confirmed that 45 Hackney
Carriages are currently undertaking private hire work on their systems. This
means approximately 53% of the drivers of Hackney Carriages are additionally
undertaking private hire work as permitted by the legislation.

The Hackney Carriage trade has not requested the Council to consider a change
in Hackney Tariff since 2008. However in January 2017, the Hackney Carriage
Drivers Association submitted a request for a variation to the current Hackney
Carriage Fare Tariff so that tariffs 1 and 2 were removed and that the current
tariff 2 is instead applied to all journeys undertaken 24/7, 365 days of the year.
The Licensing Service were notified by telephone on the 21% February 2017 by
Mr Oakes that they wanted to abandon the request to change the current
Hackney Tariff as this would make them uncompetitive compared to the Private
Hire rates.

Competition From Private Hire Trade

It is not disputed that the numbers of private hire drivers has continued to
increase however this is a trend also reflected in neighbouring authorities.

Recently there has been planning permission granted to two existing private
hire operators to have offices within the Town Centre, this is in addition to the
one that has been operating for some time. The Licensing Service objected to
the Planning Authority regarding two additional offices in the Town Centre. The
Planning Authority considered all the objections to the applications and it was
decided that the change of use applications would be granted.

The cost of licensing a new hackney carriage

This is not disputed



Document Pack Page 15

4.4.2 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and the impact upon

4.4.3

4.5

4.5.1

disabled passengers is included in this. In undertaking this work the Licensing
Service is considering its duties in relation to improving the quality of life of all
people of all groups in Bury and promoting equality and accessibility. According
to Government Statistics there are 8440 people in Bury claiming Disability
Living Allowance which is less than 5% of the population. Taxis and Private Hire
Vehicles play an important function in the life of people with disabilities. It is
essential that their needs are considered, however it also important to consider
the potential links to the age of vehicles and the benefits to disabled people.
Key issues that surround the implementation of a vehicle age policy are the
promotion of improved quality of life, accessibility, public safety, and to tackle
air quality and climate change through lower vehicle emissions.

The policy will impact upon vehicle owners whose vehicles do not fit within the
limits of new proposals with regard to air quality emissions and the Greater
Manchester Air Quality Action Plan 2016-2021. Poor Air Quality is the largest
environmental risk to public health in the UK. It is known to have more severe
effects on vulnerable groups for example the elderly, children and people
suffering from pre-existing health conditions such as respiratory and
cardiovascular conditions. Studies have shown that the most deprived areas of
Britain bear a disproportionate share of poor air quality.

Comparison with other local authorities

The Licensing Service has contacted the other Greater Manchester Authorities
to obtain their age policies, a table of the policies is below:-

. Lower Age Limit Upper Age Limit
Sl HCV PHV HCV PHV
Bolton 10 None 15 None
Bury None None 10 10
13 (purpose
Salford 4 4 built) 10
Tameside 5 5 15 12
7 - Between | 7 - Between
the ages of the ages of
five and five and
seven seven
vehicles are vehicles are
permitted to permitted to
fail on minor | fail on minor | 12 Saloons 12
Oldham items, items, (Purpose Highly adapted
however itis | howeveritis | built) - 14 PHV - 14
fails on a fails on a
major item major item
then it may then it may
not be not be
granted a granted a
licence. licence.
Manchester None 7 12 7
None
(if fails
compliance
Rochdale None 5 None test then no re-
test -
application
refused)




Document Pack Page 16

Wigan 10 6 None None
Stockport None None None None
None,

however, at None, however
10 vehicle is | at 6 vehicle is

Trafford None 4 subject to subject to
assessment | assessment of
of its its condition.
condition

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.6.3

4.6.4

5.0

5.1

The Licensing Service has looked at the Greater Manchester Air Quality Action
Plan 2016-2021. In the plan is the specific action to be addressed by Transport
for Greater Manchester and local authorities to set stricter emission for taxis
and consider clean air zones. For the Purpose of this report we sought
comments from Transport for Greater Manchester and the response received
was as follows:-

The Greater Manchester Low Emission Strategy and Air Quality Action Plan seek
to reduce the harmful poliutants, primarily nitrogen oxides and particulate
matter. The UK government and local authorities have a legal duty to reduce
these harmful emissions in areas that exceed the regulated limit of 40
micrograms of NO2 as an annual average. These areas are known as Air
Quality Management Areas.

Both DEFRA and local modelling indicates that roads in and around Bury town
centre will continue to breech limits post 2020.

The majority of these emissions emanate from road vehicles. The Air Quality
action plan recognises that improvement of regulations will contribute to
reducing emissions. With regard to taxis, action 1.7 states that

TFfGM will work with licensing authorities and seek to standardise the minimum
emission requirements (i.e age) of the vehicles that are allowed to operate.

The minimum emission standards will be progressively increased in future
years to ensure a very low emission limit will be achieved within a defined
timescale

TfGM would therefore advise that the age and therefore emissions standards
remain at the current 10 year limit.

In light of the information obtained from Transport for Greater Manchester in
respect of Air Quality, the above Greater Manchester Authorities will have to re
- consider their own policies by 2020, therefore it is felt that Bury should be at
the forefront of action locally and retain the 10 year age policy, which will
alleviate the need for Bury Council to further consider the age policy again in
2020.

THE REQUEST FROM A2Z LICENSING

The purpose of this report is for the implementation date to commence of the
approved policy decision From May 2014. This provided that Hackney vehicles
over 10 years old, were no longer to be subject to the 5 fault rule and to be

8



Document Pack Page 17

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

subject to the exceptional condition criteria. It is not for hackney carriages to
revert back to being subject to the 5 fault rule.

The exceptional condition criteria detailed at Appendix 3, contains 8 criteria
listed as a-h

a - Vehicles must never have been entered on the HPI register. Even if
removed from the register, vehicles will be excluded.

Any vehicle entered on the HPI register will have been purchased on Hire
Purchase Finance. This means the purchaser of the vehicle does not become the
true owner of the vehicle until the final finance payment has been made. The
vehicle remains the property of the finance company.

The licensing service has never checked the finance status of any vehicles prior
to being licensed and yet has not encountered any problems relating to vehicles
being on the HPI register

The Licensing Service agree this criteria should be removed.

b — No re-test of the vehicle shall be permitted (other than replacing faulty light
bulbs.

The request is to amend this to include a permitted single re-test.

A2Z licensing were consulted and asked for further clarification on what this
point means. The licensing service was informed it means the vehicle should be
allowed to fail once and be repaired but will not be re-licensed again after that.

The exceptional condition criteria was implemented to ensure that any vehicle
over 10 years old should be just that, exceptional. This is both mechanically
and aesthetically. Permitting a re-test only allows for the introduction of greater
uncertainty, debate and ambiguity. This would require precise details as to what
would be deemed a failure? One fault or numerous faults? What degree of
severity? mechanical, appearance or design? Introducing such a change to the
criteria would make the policy difficult to follow and could lead to challenges of
inconsistency through interpretation.

¢ - Interior fascias, linings, carpets and upholstery to be free from damage i.e.
cuts, blemishes, tears with no evidence of repairs. All to be in a clean and tidy
condition.

The change requested here is to remove reference to there being “no evidence
of repairs”. The inclusion of this wording again removes the possibility of
ambiguity and interpretation.

Should repairs be permissible then the level of the quality of the repair is
subject to scrutiny. This will lead to a further determination on the quality of
the repair being requested. Allowing repairs to - seat fabric, linings, carpets and
interiors will amount to a lowering of standards with regards to the appearance
of the interior of the vehicle.

The Department of Transport Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Best
Practice Guidance declares that taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (PHVs) provide
a service to the public so it is also appropriate to set criteria for the internal
condition of the vehicle , though these should not be unreasonably onerous.

9



Document Pack Page 18

5.2.4

5.2.5

5.2.6

5.2.7

5.2.8

5.3

The licensing service believes this wording should remain as part of the
criterion.

d - Chassis to be free from defects, distortions, repairs including welding.

The licensing service believe this criterion should remain in the absence of
justification for its removal

e - Vehicle to be as per the manufacturer specification for model. Modifications
or adoptions only allowed with the consent of the council.

The licensing service believes this criterion should remain with a corrected
change to the word adoptions which should read as adaptions.

f - Vehicles must meet this “exceptional condition” criteria at each test and
also at roadside checks. Should a vehicle fail at a a roadside check, then the
“exceptional condition” status is suspended and the vehicle will not be re-
licensed.

The licensing service believes this criterion should remain in the absence of
justification for its removal.

g - Bodywork must be free from blemishes and corrosion damage. Body and
paintwork to be maintained in an exceptional condition. All repairs to the body
and paintwork are to be professionally carried out by VIBRA member and
subject to inspection by the councils Vehicle Examiner.

The changes requested include the removal of the word blemishes and a
change of the word exceptional to good.

The proposed amendments again are requesting a lowering of standards as to
the appearance of the vehicle. If the reference to being free from blemishes is
removed, again as detailed above this will lead to ambiguity and uncertainty.
Blemishes do not impact on the safety of the vehicle, however it is recognised
that it is appropriate to set criteria relating to the appearance of the vehicle.
Standards will be lowered and challenges will begin as to what is an acceptable
blemish and at what point does a blemish become unsightly etc.

The criteria is referenced as “Exceptional Condition” Criteria therefore to
change the requirement for the bodywork and paintwork to good, devalues the
standards being set.

The Licensing Service believes the wording should remain as written.

h - Exceptional Condition Criteria will also consider the previous fault history of
the vehicle.

The Licensing Service has never had cause to refer to this criterion and agrees

it should be removed.

The Licensing Service has provided some examples of what Hackney Carriages
have failed on when they are presented for test recently. This is attached at
Appendix 7

10



Document Pack Page 19

5.4 The Licensing and Safety Panel have on numerous occasions considered
whether to permit another garage to be authorised. To date the panel have
said no. This matter was raised by Mr Oakes, Director of the Hackney Carriage
Drivers Association and a number of driver who attended the Licensing and
Safety Panel meeting on the 15" June and the Chairman of the Panel indicated
that this matter had been discussed on numerous occasions

5.5 The Licensing Service request that in light of the information contained within
the body of the report that the Hackney Carriage Age Policy should remain at
10 years old. This will ensure parity between the Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Trades having to meet the same policy requirements. The Licensing
Service is concerned that many of the older vehicles are not being maintained
by vehicle owners to a suitable standard.

5.6 Improving the vehicles that are used in Bury forms part of a wider strategy to
assist with improving air quality for residents and visitors. There are a number
of ways in which the local authority can promote these changes and this
includes a change in policy for the vehicles that can be licensed as Hackneys
and Private Hire Vehicles by moving away from higher polluting vehicles to
those with lower emissions.

6 CONCLUSION

Members are requested to consider the options of this report on page 1.

List of Background Papers:-

Previous Licensing & Safety Panel Reports and associated minutes relating to Age
Policy

Contact Details:-

Mr M. Bridge

Licensing Unit Manager

3 Knowsley Place

Duke Street

Bury

BL9 OEJ

Telephone: 0161 253 5209
Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk

11



Document Pack Page 20



T ——— —

== Document Pack Page 21 4 "
' Stephen Kenyon CPFA o - ppeunciy
Interim Executive Director of Resources and Regulation

Our Ref Concession Ending
Your Ref
Department for

Date Date as Postmark .
Please ask for Mr M Bridge Resources and Regulation
Direct Line 0161 253 5209 .

: . David Fowler
E-mail m.bridge@bury.gov.uk Assistant Director

(Localities)

To all Hackney Carriage Vehicle
Licence Holders

Dear Sir/Madam,

Concession to Current Hackney Carriage vehicle licence holders

Further to the meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel on the 8" May 2014,
a report was considered in respect of the licensing and testing of both Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles. The members decided that:-

Any vehicle entering the Private Hire or the Hackney Carriage vehicle
fleet must be under 10 years old from the date of first registration
unless the vehicle meets the ‘exceptional condition’ criteria once it
reaches it’s 10'" birthday and on subsequent periodic inspections
otherwise the vehicle licence will not be renewed.

In adopting the above policy, the members of the Licensing and Safety Panel
resolved to extend the following three year concession to existing Hackney
Carriage vehicle licence holders whose vehicle is currently over 6 years old
from the date of first registration. The options to choose from were as

follows:-
1. For their vehicle to remain subject to the current five fault rule for a further 3 year

period after which period the vehicle will be subject to the exceptional condition
criteria if it is over 10 years old.

Or
2. For their vehicle to immediately cease being subject to the 5 fault rule and instead

to be subject to the ‘exceptional condition’ criteria once the vehicle becomes 10
years old from the date of first registration.

I must inform you that the above concessions will cease to have effect on the
15t June 2017, therefore if your vehicle is over 10 years of age from date of
first registration after this date and it is does not meet the ‘exceptional
condition’ criteria your vehicle will not be re-licensed. I have included the
‘exceptional condition’ criteria for your information.

Yours faithfully

Michael Bridge -Licensing Unit Manager

Electronic or fax service of Legal documents is not accepted

Licensing Services, 3 Knowsley Place, Duke Street, Bury, BL9 OEJ
www.bury.gov.uk



Document Pack Page 22



Ev__.,

Document Pack Page 23 =

Appenciy 2.

Definition of a fault for the ‘5 fault Rule’ testing purposes

Ser: | Category of fault: | Description of Number | Remarks:
fault: of faults:

1 MOT ITEMS Any individual fault 1 Fault e.g. leaking brake
which would cause cylinder plus a bald tyre
the vehicle to fail the is 2 faults.
standard MOT test
will count as:

2 INTERIOR Any combination of a | 1 Fault (e.g. a torn passenger
number of faults seat plus stained
within the interior of upholstery plus a hole in
the vehicle (not carpet will count as only
including the 1 fault).
dashboard
‘ihstruments working
correctly e.g. a
broken
speedometer) will
count as:

3 PAINTWORK Damage to the 1 Fault e.g. Damaged paintwork
vehicle paintwork on 4 panels would count
regardless as to the as 1 fault.
number of areas
concerned, will count
as:

4 BODYWORK Any number of dents | 1 Fauit e.g. A damaged

DAMAGE / / scratches / rusting passenger door and a
RUST which materially damaged / rusted n/s
effects the wing would count as 1
appearance of the fault.
vehicle will count as:
5 For the purpose of Nil Fault | Light bulbs not working

EXCLUDED ITEMS

the ‘5 Fault Rule’,
the following items
would require
rectifying before a
pass certificate was
issued but wouid not
be counted as
faults:

No fire extinguisher
No Fare card on dispiay
Absence of vehicle

| signage

A missing licence plate
No taxi meter fitted / not
accurate / not operating
correctly.




Document Pack Page 24



_____ = H‘ppmd‘uc =2

The ‘exceptional condition’ criteria is defined as follows:-

CURRENT PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE ‘EXCEPTIONAL CONDITION’
CRITERIA

Vehicles must never have been entered on the HPI register. Even if
removed from the register, vehicles will be excluded.

No re-test of the vehicle will be permitted (other than replacing faulty
light bulbs.

Interior fascias, linings, carpets and upholstery to be free from damage
i.e. cuts, blemishes, tears, with no evidence of repairs. All to be in a clean

and tidy condition.
Chassis to be free from defects, distortions, repairs including welding.

Vehicle to be as per the manufacturer specification for model.
Modifications or adoptions only allowed with the consent of the council.

Vehicles must meet this ‘exceptional condition’ criteria at each test and
also at roadside checks. Should a vehicle fail at a roadside check, then the
‘exceptional condition’ status is suspended and the vehicle will not be re-
licensed.

Bodywork must be free from blemishes and corrosion damage. Body and
paintwork to be maintained in an exceptional condition. All repairs to the
body and paintwork are to be professionally carried out by VIBRA member
and subject to inspection by the council’s Vehicle Examiner. .

Exceptional condition criteria will also consider the previous fault history
of the vehicle.




Document Pack Page 26



Document Pack Page 27
J A ppethuc l-

8 Salthill Road, Clitheroe, Lancashire BB7 1NU
Tel: 01200 859251 / 07866 520457
Fax: 0191 2475855

pecialistlcensing advice, assistance and representation ® taxis ® aloohol and entertainment @ wedding venues ® gambling.

Michael Bridge Our Ref: Bury/GB1

Licensing Unit Manager Your Ref:

Bury Council Date: 9 May 2017

3 Knowsley Place Please ask for: Giles Bridge
Duke Street

Bury

BL9 OSW

Sent by email only to:
m.bridge@bury.gov.uk

Dear Mr Bridge

I am writing on behalf of the Bury Hackney Drivers Association to request that the
council reconsider the decision that as of the 1%t of June 2017 all vehicles aged over 10
years move to the ‘exceptional condition’ criteria and off the 5 fault rule. The drivers
would ask that the council also take into account the petition which is submitted at the
same time. The petition shows the strength of feeling that all the drivers, including
those not directly affected, feel about this matter.

The reason for this request are the difficulties that this change will cause to a significant
proportion of the trade over the coming year. The move from the 5 fault rule to
exceptional condition means that proprietor’s will find it more difficult to re-licence
vehicles which are over 10 years old. The subsequent cost of acquiring a replacement
vehicle will lead to a significant proportion of proprietor's/drivers to decide that it is no
longer worthwhile remaining in the trade, with the result that provision of hackney
vehicles in the borough will be reduced.

| will set out below the reasons and evidence why the drivers believe that the policy
needs to be reconsidered.

The policy

The intention of the policy is laudable, to ensure that standards are maintained in the
fleet of vehicles, particularly those vehicles that are older. The policy will affect a
significant proportion of the hackney trade. Set out below are the number of vehicles
month by month over the next year which will be affected by the policy. The total
number is

2017: June 3, July 1, August 3, September 2, October 4, November 5,
December 2.
r' Website: Proprietor:
www.a2zlicensing.co.uk Giles Bridge, BA Hons, PG Cert Ed, PG Dip Law (Bar Vocational Course)

- owns and independently operates a franchise of a2z Licensing (UK) Ltd.

| Email:
l_! giles.bridge@aZzlicensing.co.uk | a2z Licensing and the logo are trademarks of a2z Licensing (UK} Ltd.

14



"

-—— - _,,;,_..7:.;_A =

Document Pack Page 28 %‘?‘_—

- [

2018 January 1, February 3, March 3, April 1, May 3.
The total number is 31 or 1/3 of the hackney fleet.

The ‘exceptional condition’ policy, as currently framed, has three main provisions which
will cause difficulties, which are:

b. No re-test of the vehicle will be permitted (other than replacing faulty light bulbs).

C. Interior fascias, linings, carpets and upholstery to be free from damage i.e. cuts,
blemishes, tears, with no evidence of repairs. Also to be in a clean and tidy
condition.

g. Bodywork must be free from blemishes and corrosion damage. Body and

paintwork to be maintained in an exceptional condition. All repairs to the body
and paintwork are to be professionally carried out by VIBRA member and subject
to inspection by the council’s Vehicle Examiner.

The difficulty that the trade face is that the vehicles are in daily use and are subject to
normal wear and tear, which is outside the control of the drivers themselves. Damage
to the vehicle will ordinarily be caused by passengers or other road users.

None of the 3 items above relates to the safety of the vehicle, but relate to the
appearance of the vehicle. Maintaining a good appearance for vehicles on the fleet is
important, but the trade are facing real financial pressures as a consequence of a
number of factors, which mean that the capital cost of purchasing a new vehicle will
cause, either: financial hardship or alternatively lead to a number of existing drivers to
decide to leave the trade. That problem is substantial given the fact that a change to
‘exceptional condition’ requirement will mean that a substantial number of vehicles will
have to be replaced.

The factors causing financial difficulties to the trade are: 1) the continuing decline of
hackney trade, 2) increased competition from the private hire trade, 3) the high cost of a
new vehicle.

1) Decline of hackney trade

There are a number of factors which are affecting the hackney trade. There has been a
decline in fooffall in the areas around the hackney ranks. There is a real difficulty
getting onto the ranks at weekend evenings because of i) private vehicles parking on
the ranks and ii) private hire vehicles parking on the ranks to drop off and pick up. The
result is that fewer pedestrians make their way to the ranks, which then also affects the
number of hackneys which attempt to park on them. It is also to be noted that the
council's hackney by laws require hackneys to proceed to a rank. The difficulty that the
trade face is that often it is not possible to find a space on the rank to wait, because of
other vehicles parking illegally on those ranks.

| understand that the Hackney Drivers Association has supplied photographic evidence
of this to the council, over a considerable period of time.



Document Pack Page96

residual value. The cost of the vehicle is therefore around £3,400 per year before
adding on the interest of any loan and vehicle servicing and repairs are accounted for.
These are very substantial capital investments, which current takings within the trade do

not justify.

Purchasing a 5 year old vehicle does not greatly reduce the cost per year: Peugeot and
Renault side loading wheelchair accessible taxis are amongst the cheaper vehicles,
whilst still providing reasonable reliability. Such a vehicle will still cost around £13-
14,000 at 5 years old. With a working life of around 5 years, the annual depreciation is
around £2,600 per year, though servicing and repairs will be more given the age of the
vehicle. Again, the interest of any loan to purchase the vehicle would need to be added
on.

These costs are substantially more than are incurred by private hire drivers when they
purchase a vehicle. The vehicles are constructed to have a long working life, given the
extra cost of purchase. The problem that the trade face with the ‘exceptional condition’
criteria is that by the time a vehicle is 10 years old only vehicles in truly exceptional
condition can meet the criteria. Wear and tear over the years will have taken its toll and
perfectly adequate vehicles which are capable of providing good service would be
removed from the fleet essentially for their appearance rather than any concerns about

safety.

The trade fear that over the next year, up to, 1/3 of the fleet may be lost. Such a loss
would not only affect the drivers themselves but also impact upon the travelling public
and disabled passengers in particular. The private hire trade is not equipped to provide
transport for those requiring wheelchair accessible vehicles. The remaining hackney
fleet would not be in a position to meet the demand for hackneys.

Given the difficulties currently faced by the hackney trade it is appropriate for the council
to reconsider the move over to ‘exceptional condition’ and also to see what other steps

can be taken to assist the hackney trade.
Comparison with other local authorities

The Bury hackney trade cannot be compared directly with Manchester, where there is a
very busy city centre, which means that hackney vehicles carry out much greater
mileage and work, with vehicles often having 2 drivers: a night and a day driver.

A better comparison is with neighbouring authorities. Bolton for instance allow
hackneys onto the fleet up to 10 years old and will re-license vehicles until they are 15
years old. Rochdale has no age policy. Rossendale is attempting to reduce the
maximum vehicle age policy, but this is in response to the particular situation which is
particular to Rossendale. Blackburn with Darwen has no maximum age policy in
relation to vehicles.



Documeht Pack Page 30 R —

Income of drivers has reduced, or drivers have to work longer hours to maintain the
same level of income. The fact that the hackney fares have not increased since August
2008 is making the situation worse. The Association estimates that driver income has
decreased by 30% over the last 4 years.

2) Competition from the private hire trade

The number of private hire drivers and vehicles has continued to increase year on year.
The number of private hire firms has consolidated: there are fewer, larger firms. Private
hire firms are making use of new technology, such as apps and dispatch systems. The
effect of this is that private hire firms are able to supply vehicles more quickly than they
would have been able to do in the past. This means that the competitive advantage
which hackney carriages have of being able to ply for hire and being immediately
available for hire on the ranks is reduced. The result can be shown in the figures below,
which show that the private hire trade has expanded considerably over the last 3 2
years, yet the hackney trade has stagnated. The number of private hire vehicles
licensed by Bury has increased by 180, 25%, between 2014 and 2017. These figures
support the hackney trade’s contention that in comparison to the private hire trade, that
the hackney trade is finding the current trading situation is difficult, with a slight
decrease in the number of licensed vehicles since 2015.

Year Hackney Hackney Private Hire Private Hire
Driver Vehicle Driver vehicle

2014 119 89 872 721

2015 120 94 893 783

2016 118 93 929 835

2017 122 90 1006 901

3) The cost of licensing a new hackney carriage vehicle

A new hackney carriage vehicle must be less than 6 years old on first registration. The
Council policy regarding the licensing of hackney carriages is that all vehicles must be
wheelchair accessible and side rather than rear loading. Side loading is required
because of the location and siting of hackney ranks. There is no similar requirement
regarding private hire vehicles.

Hackney carriage vehicles are generally larger and heavier than private hire vehicles.
The cost of running such vehicles is higher than for standard saloon private hire
vehicles, in terms of fuel and servicing.

The vehicles themselves are more expensive, given their size and the fact that they
have to be specifically adapted for use as hackney vehicles. The number of such
vehicles on the market is limited and they command a premium price, which is
maintained even when the vehicles are bought second hand. By way of example a new
Peugeot E7 costs around £30,000. A 3 year old Mercedes Vito costs around £24,000
giving a working life of 7 years if it cannot meet the exceptional condition criteria. At 10
years old, having been used as a hackney carriage the vehicle would have very little



nent Pack Page 31

Request of the council

The hackney trade requests either that all hackney vehicles be allowed to remain on the
5 fault policy or that the exceptional condition policy is amended so that it reads as
follows:

b. A single re-test of the vehicle will be permitted (other than replacing faulty light
bulbs).

C. Interior fascias, linings, carpets and upholstery to be free from damage i.e. cuts,
blemishes, tears. Also to be in a clean and tidy condition.

g. Bodywork must be free from corrosion damage. Body and paintwork to be
maintained in good condition. All repairs to the body and paintwork are to be
professionally carried out by VIBRA member and subject to inspection by the
council’'s Vehicle Examiner.

The drivers would request that the move from Five Fault to ‘exceptional condition’ not
be implemented on the 1%t of June 2017, but deferred until the Committee has had the
opportunity to consider the concerns of the trade.

The drivers further request that the age limit for hackney vehicles be lifted from 10 to 15
years, which would be in line with the situation in neighbouring and comparable
authorities. Increasing the maximum age policy would give drivers a greater period of
time to recoup the investment that is involved in purchasing a wheelchair accessible
vehicle.

Additionally, the hackney trade would request action is taken by the council to ensure
that the hackney ranks are kept clear for hackneys to rank up on them. The trade
believes that this can only be achieved if enforcement action is taken in relation to
vehicles that park illegally on the hackney ranks. Such-enforcement activity needs to be
sustained over a period of time to become effective and to change the attitude of drivers
who park in the vicinity of the ranks. The benefit of this is that it will increase the
number of hackneys who are able to stand on the ranks. Those hackneys will do more
work and customers will be encouraged to visit the ranks, knowing that a hackney will
be available for hire.

On a separate matter the hackney trade would request that Bury Council look to
widening the number of garages authorised to test vehicles, to enable there to be a
choice of garage, which would mean that the waiting time for appointments would be
reduced. Other local authorities have a panel of garages which can be used.
Standards can be maintained as appropriate criteria can be set. Bolton Council for
instance requires that all garages which test hackney and private hire vehicles tender
for the work and have the highest VOSA rating, which is a green light.



Document Pacﬁ%ﬁg@ 32

| look forwards to your response in this matter and thank you in advance for your
attention and assistance.

Yours sincerely,

Giles Bridge
Barrister & Licensing Consultant

Email: giles.bridge@a2zlicensing.co.uk
Mobile: 07866 520457

Enc: Petition signed by hackney drivers



e

Bury Hackney Drivers Petition
We are hackney drivers licensed with Bury Council and ask that
the council reconsider the decision to move from the 5 fault
assessment to exceptional condition criteria for vehicles from the
1 of June 2017. We also request that the age limit be lifted from
10 to 15 years. We believe that individual drivers and the trade as
a whole are not in a position to afford the move to the replacement

of vehicles that the change in policy will require.
Name Licence Plate Signed
Number Number

COASIF N 2 35 A"

. L 7 =
2 ). R Bl 89 47 o W;c/
G SHABK 719 88 . S

—_——— — - — s ST -

W sutav  Bo 199 #-e
5 /WD "
%EM%@ o 45 Mip—gy )
6 £ " Bfﬂ* G . 3o ; an
! ey 3 - T
T Wp et a7 (%) (Z}ﬁ"’f
o e
s M- SARWALS . ) N\/%f
o 4 RASWD 23 5o e )

CRezHIE 47 10h QIS



" Document Pack Page 34 =

Bury Hackney Drivers Petition
We are hackney drivers licensed with Bury Council and ask that
the council reconsider the decision to move from the 5 fault
assessment to exceptional condition criteria for vehicles from the
1" of June 2017. We also request that the age limit be lifted from
10 to 15 years. We believe that individual drivers and the trade as
a whole are not in a position to afford the move to the replacement

of vehicles that the change in policy will require. |

Name Licence Plate Signed
@ Number Number

| . )
SHAHRA RAEIY HY H2o ADKa

The " e

3
Ktme p #el - HE7  fZeer

o,

CoFteng kipne oo HE TP

AriD Huss = | b2< Hzz - Ml dank -

ﬂ(l; Q@“ M fladﬁ,p&% 12 G /U(ﬂ(«\_ﬁ
4 H 11
Apwmbly_ rinn  pthgmre A H 7 LAl

: H [l
Ql:ﬂé(/\/(.@@’[«wmmo’\ H 12 & (%2‘]@

g N\' @AD(L\ H% ?7% P

o AL RHPA 85 85T WW




e,

Document Pack Pagji;é%‘_::SS

Bury Hackney Drivers Petition
We are hackney drivers licensed with Bury Council and ask that
the council reconsider the decision to move from the 5 fault
assessment to exceptional condition criteria for vehicles from the
1" of June 2017. We also request that the age limit be lifted from
10 to 15 years. We believe that individual drivers and the trade as
a whole are not in a position to afford the move to the replacement
of vehicles that the change in policy will require.

Name Licence Plate Signed
@ L L .
» v B3l
| pRZA AstAr Tk WS o ,
39 S ket

273
, Vi itk '
, ougt B

4 RaSA SageeR Annes o

QO SATICAAN 42 &/ Ir——
S ppout mAI) BT 3% g (A

= Te A - H oY
T ARMAL-H-SHAW - 2.2

o 11t Midhasama A PN e Wl
Baghr g9 e

5 @rz AL HUSSATY - RAG.Wo - §T
o, 1 —

. | oS
10 TaRie AWMAD it N Te &9 Jﬁ‘% —



P = -
- e
==

Bury Hackney Drivers Petition
We are hackney drivers licensed with Bury Council and ask that
the council reconsider the decision to move from the 5 fault
assessment to exceptional condition criteria for vehicles from the
1° of June 2017. We also request that the age limit be lifted from
10 to 15 years. We believe that individual drivers and the trade as
a whole are not in a position to afford the move to the replacement
of vehicles that the change in policy will require.

@ Name .I];li:;?:r ll:l]:::bcr o ) -

1 M Yovvus >F 3 DT

,  SonAt N PREER & 3 gsz%@e.v

yea il

P Clum & SE 9K @f

—— MR - - E—— f——

) ,g/w'r“//( Ho H 73 A/ .

s LR S g A

o M

¢4 sAaRwal 2 HZt R e

7= A SR W

S m)eharsiy H33 B I2Z

s NI MG HTY N 1)G
Motammegn mise 131 B 74

10

== Document Pack Page 36 = -

| Mln



Document Pacﬁ:’age 37 eEET _—“‘“—E:

Bury Hackney Drivers Petition
We are hackney drivers licensed with Bury Council and ask that
the council reconsider the decision to move from the 5 fault
assessment to exceptional condition criteria for vehicles from the
1* of June 2017. We also request that the age limit be lifted from
10 to 15 years. We believe that individual drivers and the trade as
a whole are not in a position to afford the move to the replacement
of vehicles that the change in policy will require.

5’ Name Licence Plate Signed

Number Number

WS SAHAR 3¢ wee  MdnSul

]

2 Ry oL JLSO)_M—Q{ Ak vz -

<1 Qo
’ LMD T\ q <\ -

4 B 2¢

i1 Admco D kadam W27/ Cf“‘:_.;[f_-:.,,ﬂ--«—"—‘*
e SHJ/’#; _H I _ H-,Lﬁ, M: 5(;@_
® Mkompock %du@\ 9 -_H;?Lc:) fﬁ olbetuble/\
T S e
Camz Bee s e H St — {f =,

"gopumep A3 He ol

e il )
10 "y - — :
/5(4/7 spry AZrZ 4 L0 /[



it
'——'-'Pf—rr—- =
Lo E=EEe T T

Document Pack PagsifSS

Bury Hackney Drivers Petition
We are hackney drivers licensed with Bury Council and ask that
the council reconsider the decision to move from the 5 fault
assessment to exceptional condition criteria for vehicles from the
1* of June 2017. We also request that the age limit be lifted from
10 to 15 years. We believe that individual drivers and the trade as
a whole are not in a position to afford the move to the replacement

of vehicles that the change in policy will require.

Name Licence Plate Signed
Number Number

| zUL.F_m _A;— AHMED g 3 —ZB4

-~

MOUAMMED JHTF 1T o7 Ml
okaFIMED GRANTA B;‘;?Q i MOl
ZJ%LW e ST ﬂ/m/’ o2 Lapls Gey

o) o 1O (9 [1 \M\\@

MH/‘“‘Q' Mutaos | W27 wﬁ\:z

K3

, MUIARO: HUSSAIY 52 < H T3 @__
t2]
b5 Hfloon) bied 3% W 3g A

e Mooy Bl AL H ”-%
Mﬂ[w p(’ Mfw} gﬂﬂ ;'L_ % Y@tf

9
chouz\ k armT /lrﬁf, Hs
o L PN AEN___

: . <y H13) 4
et Y 1D




Bury Hackney Drivers Petition
We are hackney drivers licensed with Bury Council and ask that
the council reconsider the decision to move from the 5 fault
assessment to exceptional condition criteria for vehicles from the
1" of June 2017. We also request that the age limit be lifted from
10 to 15 years. We believe that individual drivers and the trade as
a whole are not in a position to afford the move to the replacement
of vehicles that the change in policy will require.

Name Licence Plate Signed
Number Number
Qi
Gl Py MdesT N8 TE
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9



Document Pack Page 40



Document Pack Page 41

Rank Wed 28 | Fri 30 Tuesd4 | Fri7 Fri 7 July | Fri?7 Wed Fri Fri Fri Fri Sati
June June June July 12.30pm | July 13/7 14/7 | 14/7 14/7 14/7 15/7
1.05pm | 2.15pm 12pm 10am 3pm 2.20pm | 1l1am | 6.45pm | 11.05pm | 11.30pm | 00.00pm

Kay 7 HV 1 HV with | 9 HV O HV 5HV 6 HV 7 HV 5HV | 6 HV 10 HV 9 HV 7 HV

Gardens a

customer 2 HV 3 HV

in Dixy Dixy

5 Chicken | Chicken
customers

waiting

on a taxi

Bolton 0 HV O HV 0 HV O HV 0 HV Not 0 HV OHV | 2HV 2 HV 3 HV 3 HV

Street checked

Spring 1HV Not Not 1 HV 1HV Not O HV OHV | OHV 0O HV 0 HV O HV

Street checked checked checked

Rock 1HV 0 HV 0 HV O HV 1HV Not Not OHV | OHV 0O HV OHV

Clerke checked | checked

Street

Tithebarn | O HV 0O HV O HV Not 0O HV Not Not 0 HV | Not Checked

Street checked checked | checked

Market Not 0O HV 1 HV Not 2 HV 3 HV Not 1HV | OHV O HV

Street checked checked checked

Appendix 5



Document Pack Page 42



Document Pack Page 43

3/6/17 - 23.36 - PHV - GLP

3/6/17 - 23.56 — PHV - GLP

4/6/17 - 00.53 — PHV - GLP

2/6/17 - 23.37 — Private Car - Bolton Street
2 or 3 or 4/6/17 — unknown - PC Bolton Street
02/06/17 - 23.39 — private car - Silver Street
03/06/17 —23.36 — PHV - GLP

03/06/17 — 23.56 — PHV - GLP

14/5/17 — 03.38 — PHV - Market St (Subway)
14/5/17 - 01.45 — PHV - GLP

13/5/17 — 23.32 = PHV - GLP

14/5/17 ~ 00.07 — PHV - GLP

29/4/17 — 23.32 - Private Car Bolton Street (Dixy Chcken)
29/4/17 — 23.33 - Private Car - Bolton Street (Dixy chicken)

29/4/17 — 23.33 - Private Car - Bolton Street (Dixy Chicken) (different vehicles)

21/4/17 — Private Car - GLP

2/4/17 - 1.28 - PHV - GLP

01/04/17 — 00.16 — PHV - GLP
1/4/17 — 23.54 — PHV - Bolton Street
01/04/17 — 23.55 - PHV - GLP
01/04/17 —23.52 — PHV - GLP

24 or 25/3/17 - PHV - GLP

24 or 25/3/17 - PHV - GLP

24 or 25/3/17 - PHV - GLP

01/10/16 — 00.52 — PHV - Farebay Rank

HFFQVU\K &



Document Pack Page 44



e o

““Document Pack'PageW451
— Key: Append ix T

Items identified in italics and bold text relate to the Interior
and Exterior appearance

Date Age Failure

13/06/2017 11 Seats dirty

198,552 Seat trim missing or insecure

Seat belt buckle plastic missing exposing
sharp edge

Emissions

Bulbs

Wipers

Fuel pipes fouling other fuel pipes

Aux heater hoses insecure

Sills corroded

Wheel fouling wheel arch

Poor repair on dent in wing

Fan wiring insecure

Coolant pipe chaffing intake hose
11/05/2017 11 Stop light not working

332,406 Gear selector lever badly worn

No air bag warning

Screen washer filler tube and cap missing
Rear door inner panels scruffy

Lower wheel chair belt waning light
inoperative

Loose and unprotected wires under bonnet
Fuel filter insecure under bonnet

Drivers seat only half cover fitted

Doors and wing dented

Power steering pipe insecure

Brake pad warning wire broken

Brake hose not fixed — chaffing

Brake pipe not clipped

Driveshaft inner cv boot damaged

Front brake pedal rubber not fixed on
Exhaust heat shield insecure

Scratch marks on bumpers

Loose wires round front bumper

Vehicle not cleaned to required standard
10/05/2017 15 Front brakes out of balance

237,391 Rear brake load valve not working

Rear brake load valve linkage badly worn
Sill members corroded

3 doors dented

Side lights dim

02/05/2017 8 Meter detached

257,753 Interior Valet required

Seat belt buckle in operative and one does
not retract

Wheelchair securing belt missing




LEEEEWE

“Document Pack Page 46 -
Key:

Items identified in italics and bold text relate to the Interior
and Exterior appearance

Door handle insecure

Fire extinguisher discharged
Emissions too high

Bulbs dim

Brake fluid level low

Tyre case distorted

Outer cv boot split

Brake flexi hose twisted

Front lower arm ball joint worn

Brake pipe leaking & flexi hose twisted
Wheel arch liner chaffing brake flexi hose
Wheel arch liner insecure

Steering rack gaiter split

06/04/2017 11 Electrical fault on ignition switch
241,207 Window sticker missing on interim
Driver seat torn

Exhaust emissions too high

Suspension anti roll bar link bush worn
20/03/2017 5 Windscreen washer jet low output
480,548 Boot floor covering split and dirty
Wheelchair ramp insecure mounting
Seat belt incorrectly mounted

Seat belts dirty and mouldy

Centre rear seat pins insecure

Seat lower trim detached and sharp edge
Seat belt stalk button damaged
Indicator discoloured

Side lamps inoperative

Door trim insecure

Wheel trims cracked

Wheel arch liner detaching

Steering rack mounting bracket twisted and
fouling anti roll bar

Anti roll bar “D” rubber worn

Brake pipe fouling & incorrectly secured
No anti chaffe rubber fitted on brake flexi
hose ~ fouling gearbox

Handbrake cable insecure

Meter not calibrated

29/03/2017 8 Seat belt buckle trim damaged
261,776KM | Seat belt buckle webbing cut

Seat belt not retracting properly

Tape repair to cracked headlamp lens
Ramp security poor

Tape repair to slide door, door cards
Damage to wheelarch and quarter panel
Bumper damaged

[a



“¥ - Document Pack Page 47

Wy
|
i

Key:
Items identified in italics and bold text relate to the Interior
and Exterior appearance

Tyre valves trapped by wheel trim retaining
ring

Stickers incomplete

Both front anti roll bar drop links worn
Lower arm ball joint worn

Tyre deflated




Document Pack Page 48



Document Pack Page 49

ST

COUNCIL

The following questions will document the effect of your service or proposed policy,
procedure, working practice, strategy or decision (hereafter referred to as ‘policy’)
on equality, and demonstrate that you have paid due regard to the Public Sector

Equality Duty.

1. RESPONSIBILITY

Department

Licensing

Service

Resources and Regulation

Proposed policy

REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AGE POLICY

Date

Officer responsible
for the ‘policy’ and
for completing the
equality analysis

Name Michael Bridge

Post Title Licensing Unit Manager

Contact Number | 253 5209

Signature Wﬂgﬂd@\@

Date 19/7/2017

2. AIMS

What is the purpose
of the
policy/service and
what is it intended
to achieve?

The aim of the policy is to review the existing Hackney
Carriage Age policy following a request by the Hackney
Carriage Drivers Association , subsequent to transitional
arrangements approved in May 2014 by the Licensing and
Safety Panel. There is no intention for the proposal to have
a negative impact on any particular group. The proposal is
aimed at providing a safer, greener and more accessible
fleet of Private Hire and Hackney Vehicles in Bury.

Who are the main
stakeholders?

The main stakeholders in respect of this policy review are
as follows:-

New Applicants who wish to become vehicle licence holders
Existing vehicle licence proprietors

Hackney Driver’s Association

National Taxi Association




Document Pack Page 50

3. ESTABLISHING RELEVANCE TO EQUALITY

3a. Using the drop down lists below, please advise whether the
policy/service has either a positive or negative effect on any groups of
people with protected equality characteristics.

If you answer yes to any question, please also explain why and how that
group of people will be affected.

Protected Positive Negative | Explanation

equality effect effect

characteristic (Yes/No) | (Yes/No)

Race No No

Disability Yes Yes Newer vehicles will afford easier

access for disabled people and a
positive effect with regards to
disability.

Older diesel vehicles have a significant
negative impact on air quality and
poor air quality impacts more on
vulnerable members of our
communities.

Gender No No
Gender No No
reassignment

Age No No
Sexual No No
orientation

Religion or belief | No No
Caring No No
responsibilities

Pregnancy or No No
maternity

Marriage or civil No No

partnership




Document Pack Page 51

3b. Using the drop down lists below, please advise whether or not our
policy/service has relevance to the Public Sector Equality Duty.
If you answer yes to any question, please explain why.

General Public Sector Relevance Reason for the relevance
Equality Duties (Yes/No)
Need to eliminate No

unlawful discrimination,
harassment and
victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the
Equality Act 2010

Need to advance equality | No
of opportunity between
people who share a
protected characteristic
and those who do not
(eg. by removing or
minimising disadvantages
or meeting needs)

Need to foster good No
relations between people
who share a protected
characteristic and those
who do not (eg. by
tackling prejudice or
promoting
understanding)

If you answered ‘YES' to any of

Go straight to estion 4
the questions in 3a and 3b raig Questi

If you answered ‘NO’ to all of the Go to Question 3c and do not
questions in 3a and 3b answer questions 4-6




Document Pack Page 52

3c. If you have answered ‘No’ to all the questions in 3a and 3b please
explain why you feel that your policy/service has no relevance to equality.

4. EQUALITY INFORMATION AND ENGAGEMENT

4a. For a service plan, please list what equality information you currently have
available, OR for a new/changed policy or practice please list what equality
information you considered and engagement you have carried out in relation to it.

Please provide a link if the information is published on the web and advise when it
was last updated?

(NB. Equality information can be both qualitative and quantitative. It includes
knowledge of service users, satisfaction rates, compliments and complaints, the
results of surveys or other engagement activities and should be broken down by
equality characteristics where relevant.)

Details of the equality information | Internet link if published Date last
or engagement updated
Statistics show that 8440 people in the https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/ | November
Bury claiming Disability Living Allowance. query/construct/summary.asp | 2016

With a population of 187500 this means ?mode=construct&version=0&

that 4.5% of the population are in receipt of | dataset=110

DLA.

Between the 3rd January and the 10th March 2014. https://councildecisions.bury.gov.

the Licensing Service has uk/documents/g1598/Public%20r

engaged in a consultation with all Hackney Carriage | eports%20pack%?2008th-May-

and Private Hire vehicle 2014%2019.00%20Licensing%?20

licence holders, Private Hire Operators and Trade and%?20Safety%20Panel.pdf?T=1

Association representatives. 0

All consultees were personally written to and invited
to submit their views on the current vehicle licensing
and testing policies and to provide any suggestions
for improving them.

4b. Are there any information gaps, and if so how do you plan to tackle them?

We don't believe there are any information gaps.




Document Pack Page 53

5. CONCLUSIONS OF THE EQUALITY ANALYSIS

What will the likely
overall effect of your
policy/service plan be
on equality?

These are detailed in part 3 a

If you identified any
negative effects (see
questions 3a) or
discrimination what
measures have you put
in place to remove or
mitigate them?

The negative effect with regards to people with
disabilities would be negated by the current policy
remaining and the proposed amendments not be
allowed

Have you identified
any further ways that
you can advance
equality of opportunity
and/or foster good
relations? If so, please
give details.

The service is looking to retain the policy as approved in
2014 a 3 year transition period was implemented to
allow for the fostering good relations as has the
suspension of the implementation date to allow for
further challenge and consideration.

Further considerations are being made to introduce
other suggestions in relation to this matter as part of a
consolidation of all the “taxi policies” into one policy.

What steps do you
intend to take now in
respect of the
implementation of
your policy/service
plan?

The matter will be placed before the Licensing and
Safety Panel on the 27% July 2017 for consideration.
Legal challenges have also been initiated that may have
an impact on this policy if introduced.

6. MONITORING AND REVIEW

If you intend to proceed with your policy/service plan, please detail what
monitoring arrangements (if appropriate) you will put in place to monitor
the ongoing effects. Please also state when the policy/service plan will be

reviewed.

The Policy will be reviewed if a valid request is received from the trade .

The policy will be reviewed in light of legislation changes or revised guidance from
Transport for Greater Manchester with regard to improved emissions requirements.
The Policy would be referred to the Council’s Licensing And Safety Panel for

consideration.

Current legal challenges by individuals may impact on the policy if approved
unchanged . This will lead to further reviews of the policy.




Document Pack Page 54

COPIES OF THIS EQUALITY ANALYSIS FORM SHOULD BE ATTACHED TO ANY
REPORTS/SERVICE PLANS AND ALSO SENT TO THE EQUALITY INBOX
(equality@bury.gov.uk) FOR PUBLICATION.



mailto:equality@bury.gov.uk

Document Pack Page 55 Agenda ltem 9

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Document Pack Page 67 Agenda ltem 10

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 OPERATIONAL REPORT
	6 REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AGE POLICY
	ECIA Vehicle Policy Review 2017 ASL Amendments

	9 SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCES
	10 APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE /PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE

